FILED Court of Appeals Division I State of Washington 5/23/2022 3:02 PM FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 5/24/2022 BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

100852-0

No. 834193

SUPREME COURT

OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

 $\label{eq:controller} Pamela~K.~Scott,~Petitioner\\ V\\ Louise~Love,~DOC,~Colin~Hayes,~et~al~Respondents$

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Pamela K. Scott Petitioner Filing *Pro-se*

131 McGeary Rd. Kelso, WA 98626 360-487-6950 pjfeever@gmail.com

D. Statement of the Case
1. Procedural History
E. Arguments Why Review Should be Accepted15
REGARDING SECTION 1983 CIVIL RIGHTS ACTION AGAINST LOUISE LOVE18
2. REGARDING DOC LIABILITY FOR THE TORT OF FALSE IMPRISONMENT
3. REGARDING THE CCPAO AND DPA HAYES19
4. THE AMENDED JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE WAS ILLEGAL20
5. REGARDING THE JOINDER OF THE HONORABLE JUDGE DANIEL STAHNKE20
D. Conclusion
E. Appendix A-1

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Washington Cases

Dress v. State Dept. of Corrections, 279 P.3d 875, 168 Wash. App.
319 (Ct. App. 2012)
In Matter of Sentence of Hilborn, 816 P. 2d 1247 - Wash: Court of
Appeals, 2nd Div. 1991
State v. Priest, 100 Wn.App. 471,476, 246 P.3d 121 (2011) (citing State v. Priest, 100 Wn.App. 451, 456, 24 997 P.2d 452 (2000)); State v.
Morales, 196 Wn.App. 106, 383 P.3d 539, rev. denied, 539 P.3d 539 (2016)20
State v. Petterson, 409 P.3d 187, 190 Wash. 2d 92 (2018)
State V. Fetterson, 409 F.5d 107, 190 Wash. 2d 92 (2010)
Federal Cases
Ashcroft v. Iqbal, 556 U.S. 662, 129 S. Ct. 1937, 173 L. Ed. 2d 868 (2009)14 <u>Haygood v. Younger</u> , 769 F.2d 1350, 1359 (9th Cir. 1985) (en banc)
Kalina v. Fletcher, 522 U.S. 118, 118 S. Ct. 502
Krupski v. Costa Crociere S. p. A., 560 U.S. 538 (2010)
Sample v. Diecks, 885 F2d 1099 (3d Cir. 1989)1
Sparling v. Daou, 411 F.3d 1006, 1013 (9th Cir. 2005), cert. denied,
126 S. Ct. 1335 (2006); Gompper v. VISX, Inc., 298 F.3d 893, 898
9th Cir. 2002). Cousins v. Lockyer, No. C 07-1165 SBA, 3 (N.D. Cal.
Oct. 31, 2007)
Constitutional Provisions
US Constitution and Const. art. I, & 3, 7, 9 and 1418 WA Article IV, Section 619
Statutes
42 U.S.C. § 19831'
RCW 4.92.090
RCW 9.94A.585(7)
RCW 9.94A.670(5)
1.C VV 3.3471.070(3)
Rules
Rule 15(c)(1)(C)17, 19, 2
CrR 7.8
DOC Policy
SSOSA Supervision Length Review Process

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Pamela K. Scott, appellant, asks this court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part B of this petition.

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

Petitioner seeks review of the Court of Appeals Decision No. 83419-3-I/2, filed 3/14/2022, in Pamela K. Scott v Louise Love, et al., and the 4/21/2022 order denying the Motion for Reconsideration . A copy of the decision is at A-2 through A-14. A copy of the Motion for Reconsideration is at A-15 through A-45. A copy of the order denying Motion to Reconsider is at A-46

C. GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- Regarding Respondents Louise Love and DOC, the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with RCW 9.94A.585(7), evidence that was before the trial court, and a published decision of the Court of Appeals; Dress v. STATE DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS, 279 P.3d 875, 168 Wash. App. 319 (Ct. App. 2012).
- Regarding Respondents DPA Colin Hayes and Clark County, the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with evidence that was before the trial court, and a decision of the Supreme Court,, 522 U.S. 118, 118 S. Ct. 502, 139 L. Ed. 2d 471 (1997).
- 3. Regarding the joinder of Judge Stahnke, the lower court dismissed Petitioner's complaint using an argument she did not make regarding jurisdiction. Does Petitioner's issue on judicial immunity present a significant question of law?

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Pamela Scott pleaded guilty to three counts of first degree possession of depictions of a

minor engaged in sexually explicit conduct. The standard sentencing range for Scott's offenses was 46 to 61 months of confinement. Pursuant to the plea agreement, the State asked the trial court to impose a SSOSA, 61 months in total duration, with 12 months of confinement and a 49 month suspended prison sentence. At the sentencing hearing on December 21, 2011, the court sentenced Scott to a 49-month suspended SSOSA, with the condition that she serve 366 days in confinement and 49 months on community custody. At that moment, Scott's sentence was accurate and according to statute.

"Ambiguous" boilerplate language on the SSOSA judgment and sentence form could be misconstrued to indicate that the community custody portion of the sentence was to be calculated by subtracting the period of confinement from the total suspended sentence. Thus, the following day, the parties returned to court to modify the judgment and sentence by striking the 49 month sentence and writing in 61 months. It was made clear in the record that the intended result was a sentence consisting of 366 days of confinement plus 49 months of community custody.

However, because now Scott's ordered term of community custody (49 months) did not match the length of her suspended sentence (61 months), the revised judgment and sentence did not comply with RCW 9.94A.670(5). However, the judge's intent was clear in the record in both back-to-back sentencing hearings, and Scott's plea bargained SSOSA sentence, that her sentence was always 366 days of confinement, followed by 49 months of community custody.

In early 2016, DOC developed and disseminated to the Records Techs the attached "SSOSA Supervision Length Review Process," which clearly states that the audit was undertaken in order to change the SSOSA prison files to match any erroneous Judgments and Sentences they found during the audit.

SSOSA Supervision Length Review Process:

- Review J&S to see if it includes the following boilerplate language or if the Court has subtracted the confinement time from the supervision length.
- (c) Suspension of Sentence. The court imposes _____ months (up to 12 months of actual confinement or the maximum term of the standard range, whichever is less) and suspends the remainder for the duration of the special sex offender sentencing alternative program.

NOTE: The language should read:

RCW 9.94A.670(5) states, "As conditions of the suspended sentence, the 3/22/2017 10:04 AMcourt must impose the following: (a) A term of confinement of up to twelve months or the maximum term within the standard range, whichever is less. The court may order the offender to serve a term of confinement greater than twelve months or the maximum term within the standard range based on the presence of an aggravating circumstance listed in RCW 9.94A.535(3)...

(b) A term of community custody could to the length of the suspended sentence, the length of the maximum term imposed pursuant to RCW 9.94A.507, or three years, whichever is greater, and require the offender to comply with any conditions imposed by the department under RCW 9.94A.703."

- If the SSOSA sentence is a CCB sentence with a supervision length of Life or if the J&S has the language from the RCW of "equal to" nothing will need to be changed. Chrono "SSOSA suspended sentence length review has been completed and no changes required."
- 3. If they have the boilerplate language or the Court orders a supervision length that reduces the suspended sentence length, subtract the original confinement time length from the suspended sentence length and this will become the new suspended sentence. Example: Court orders a suspended sentence of 131 months, in addition they order 6 months of original confinement. Subtract the 6 months of original confinement from the suspended sentence length and enter 125 months as the supervision length and the suspended confinement length will remain 131 months.
- Chrono the changes and the new SED.
- 5. Email the CCO of the SED change.
- Send an email to the Prosecutor and the Defense attorney using our normal Problem J&S
 process. Template has been added to our Problem J&S Process.
- 7. When reviewing the sentences, ensure the sentence structure is entered consistently. Laura has examples of how it should be entered.
- 8. First sort the list by the intake date with the newest intakes being recalculated first as there still may to time to file Post Sentence if the Court does not fix the error. Go back three months.
- 9. Next sort would be by the upcoming SRD's in case anyone should be off of supervision.
- Once you have completed a few of the reviews if you could give me an expected timeline for completion I would appreciate it.

Louise Love, who was reviewing SSOSA sentences for possible errors, and who flagged Scott's sentence as incorrect, was supposed to use the alternate remedy contained within Exhibit 4 in Scott's original complaint and attached herein for your consideration.

Instead of using the audit process, on January 26, 2016, DOC records technician Louise Love apparently took the first step of initiating an appeal under RCW 9.94A.585(7), which authorizes DOC to petition for review of a sentence for errors of law, but requires any such petition to be filed no later than 90 days after DOC has actual knowledge of the terms of the sentence.

On February 17, 2016, Clark County deputy prosecutor Colin Hayes filed a CrR 7.8(a) motion in superior court for an order to correct Scott's J&S. Scott objected, asking the court to pull the court recordings, noting the crossed out 49, replaced with 61, pointing out this was no clerical error, it was beyond 90 days, and it was beyond a year for even a collateral attack. On March 23, 2016, the trial court granted the motion and entered an order amending the J&S by adding 12 months of community custody to Scott's substantially completed sentence.

During the pendency of Scott's appeal, at a regularly scheduled SSOSA treatment review, on August 2, 2016, Judge Stahnke ruled there would be no action on Hayes' baseless accusations that Scott had violated the terms of her SSOSA sentence. The documents on the following pages are evidence that Hayes walked out of Judge Stahnke's courtroom on August 2nd and engaged in a series of *ultra vires* acts with the stated intent of forcing Scott to drop her appeal or face revocation. The charging documents, signed by DPA Hayes under penalty of perjury, are false in every detail, from the judge, to the sentencing date, to treatment deficiencies. No CCO had ever issued Scott a violation of conditions of her community custody, so none was attached. A-48 through A-52.

EXHIBIT 7

1 08/02/16

÷

- 2 BEGIN AUDIO 01:35:38 PM (video time aispiay)
- 3 Prosecutor: Your Honor, number one... Scott, SSOSA review.
- 4 I see Miss Scott coming up; she was ordered to complete a mental health evaluation
- 5 and a victim's impact class. She has not completed those conditions.
- 6 DOC has given her 31 days to complete those conditions before we revoke her or move
- 7 to revoke. So we're just asking right now...no action today. But, of course, admonish
- 8 the defendant that she needs to complete her sentence conditions and set it over for
- 9 about 45 days for another review.
- 10 Ms. Scott: May I speak?
- 11 Judge Stahnke: Sure.
- 12 Ms. Scott: I was up here five years ago and we've seen each other just recently. I
- 13 completed more than two years of SSOSA treatment.
- 14 Judge Stahnke: This case is on appeal.
- 15 Ms. Scott: Yes.
- 16 Judge Stahnke: So, no action today.
- 17 Prosecutor: We're just asking that it be set for another 45 days.
- 18 Judge Stahnke: Well, I think the issue on the appeal...can I speak?
- 19 Ms Scott: Your Honor, I'm sorry.
- Judge Stahnke: No, that's alright. I think the issue on appeal is the duration of
- 21 community custody that would make her comply with SSOSA and so until this Court of
- 22 Appeals resolves the duration of her community custody, there's nothing I can do on the
- 23 SSOSA issue. And it was perfected...I've got a July 26th filing from the Court of
- 24 Appeals, Division 2.
- 25 Prosecutor: That's what I was going to say, your honor. We (???) this case, however,
- it did sound like a different issue than the one we have before us today.
- 27 Judge Stahnke: Okay, so no action today.

LAW OFFRISO

NIELSEN, BROMAN & KOCH P.L.L.C.

ERIC J. NIELSEN ERIC BROMAN DAVID B. KOCH CHRISTOPHER H. GIBSON DANA M. NELSON 1908 E. MADISON STREET SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98122 Foice (206) 623-2373 Fax (206) 623-2488 WWW.NWATTORNEY NET JENNIFER M. WINKLER CASEY GRANNIS JENNIFER J. SWEIGERT JARED B. STEED KEVIN A. MARCH MARY SWIFT

OFFICE MANAGER

JAMILA BAKER

OF COUNSEL K. CAROLYN RAMAMURTI

n the mail.

August 4, 2016

Ms. Patricia Scott 3701 1/2 E 18th St Apt 13 Vancouver 98661

RE: Court of Appeals No. 49311-0-1

Dear Ms. Scott:

Our office was appointed to represent you in the above appeal. You are appealing the court's order clarifying your sentence and extending the terms and conditions of your SSOSA sentence for an additional year. We do not have the record of the hearing so we do not know yet if your appeal has any merit or if it will be successful.

The prosecuting attorney, however, contacted me on Wednesday. He informed me that the State would likely ask the trial court in your case to revoke your SOSSA sentence, which will result in you having to serve your prison time, on the grounds you have failed to comply with all the things you were required to do. He told me the State would not ask the court to revoke your sentence if you withdraw your appeal. If you decide to do that you will still need to complete the requirements of your SSOSA sentence and will be under the terms of that sentence for the additional year.

I tried to call you to discuss the State's offer with your but I am unable to leave a message on your phone (360-980-7413). I need to speak to you soon. It may be in your interest to withdraw your appeal to avoid the possibility that your SSOSA sentence will be revoked. The prosecutor indicated to me that he will make the decision to ask the court to revoke your SOSSA sentence in the next few days.

Please call me so we can discuss your options, the prosecutor's offer and what you wish to do. You can call me collect at the above number.

Sincerely.

Eric Nielsen

https://drive.google.com/drive/u/0/folders/0B_tSl_cthlb2QUxqc2JkZWJLNTQ



PROSECUTING ATTORNEY | ANTHONY F. GOLIK

SCOTT D. JACKSON Chief Deputy

CAMARA L. J. BANFIELD Chief Criminal Deputy

CHRISTOPHER HORNE Chief Civil Deputy

SHARI JENSEN Administrator

August 5, 2016

Lisa I. Toth 1104 Main Street, Suite 400 Vancouver WA 98660

State v. PAMELA KAY SCOTT Cause No. 11-1-01315-4

Dear Counsel:

Enclosed please find a Citation, bringing the above matter before the Court for the purpose of: MOTION TO REVOKE SSOSA.

Should you have questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Colin P. Hayes Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

/PMW

Enclosure

Pamela Scott 3701½ E 18th Apt 13 Vancouver, Wa 98661

1013 Franklin St | PO Box 5000 | Vancouver WA 98666-5000 | Telephone 360-397-2261 | Fax 360-397-2250 | Relay Service 711 or 800-833-6388

STATE OF WASHINGTON) : ss 2 COUNTY OF CLARK 3 The undersigned Deputy Prosecuting Attorney certifies and declares as follows: 4 Your declarant is the Deputy Prosecuting Attorney who is handling Clark County 5 Superior Court Cause No. 11-1-01315-4, State of Washington v. PAMELA KAY SCOTT. 6 PAMELA KAY SCOTT was sentenced before the JOHN P. WULLE, Judge of the Superior Court, on 11/28/2011, and the defendant was granted RCW 9.94A.670(4) and (5) 7 (SSOSA) and probation on certain terms and conditions. 8 Since the time of the granting of the sentence under RCW 9.94A.670(4) and (5) (SSOSA), Bethany clemons, Community Corrections Officer for the Department of Corrections, 10 State of Washington, has filed a violation of the conditions of Community Supervision in regard 11 to the defendant, a copy of which is attached hereto and by such reference incorporated herein 12 as if set forth in full. Based upon the violation report, there is good and sufficient reason to impose sanctions 13 based on violations of the terms and conditions of the sentence entered on 11/28/2011. 14 I certify and declare under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of Washington 15 that the foregoing is true and correct. 16 Executed at Vancouver, Washington on this day of August, 2016. 17 18 Colin P. Hayes, WSBA# 35387 19 **Deputy Prosecuting Attorney** 20 21 22 23 24 MOTION AND DECLARATION FOR ORDER REVOKING CLARK COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY

7

8

CHILDREN'S JUSTICE CENTER PO BOX 61992 VANCOUVER, WASHINGTON 98666 (360) 397-6002 (OFFICE) (360) 397-6016 (FAX)

SSOSA PURSUANT TO RCW 9.94a.670(4) and (5) - 3

, 1

E-FILED

08-08-2016, 08:18

Scott G. Weber, Clerk Clark County

LF

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK

	STATE OF WASHINGTON,	CITATION		
١	Plaintiff,			
l	v.	No. 11-1-01315-4		
l	PAMELA KAY SCOTT,			
	Defendant.	APR CHI SE SHEET SE LINCE REAL COST COST COST COST COST COST COST COST		
	TO: The above-named defendant and yo Lisa I. Toth	ur attorney:		
	YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED to appear in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, before the Honorable David E. Gregerson, Judge of the Superior Court, in the assigned courtroom, at 9:00 AM on Tuesday, August 16, 2016, for a hearing re: MOTION TO REVOKE SSOSA.			
DATED this _5 day of August, 2016.				
		STATE OF WASHINGTON, PLAINTIFF BY: Colin P. Hayes, WSBA #35387 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney		
	CERTI	CERTIFICATE OF MAILING		
	STATE OF WASHINGTON)			
	COUNTY OF CLARK)			
On Quant B, 2016, I caused to be deposited in the mails of the United States of America a prostamped and addressed envelope directed to Lisa I. Toth at 1104 Main Street, Suite 400 Vancouver WA 98661 Pamela Scott at 3701½ E 18 th Apt 13, Vancouver, WA 98661 containing a copy of the document to which this certificate is attached. I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the for is true and correct.				
	Place: Varicouver, Washington	Date: Ougust 8 , 2016.		
	CITATION - 1	CLARK COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY		
	PMW	1013 FRANKLIN STREET • PO BOX 5000 VANCOUVER, WASHINGTON 98666-5000		
		(360) 397-2261 (OFFICE) (360) 397-2230 (FAX)		
	1	(500) 551-2200 (1701)		



PROSECUTING ATTORNEY | ANTHONY F. GOLIK

SCOTT D. JACKSON Chief Deputy CAMARA L. J.

BANFIELD

Chief Criminal Deputy

CHRISTOPHER HORNE Chief Civil Deputy SHARI JENSEN Administrator

August 12, 2016

RE: State v. Pamela Scott, 11-1-01315-4

Dear Mr. Neilsen:

I am writing to propose a mutually beneficial resolution regarding your client's remaining SSOSA obligations. Even under your client's current appellate theory about the period of community custody, a limited amount of community custody time remains. Due to the fact that a SSOSA may only be revoked during the community custody period and that your client has not completed all requirements of the suspended sentence, the State has filed a petition to revoke the SSOSA. But, the State is willing to withdraw this petition if your client agrees to withdraw her appeal of the Court's recent order clarifying the period of community custody. In essence, a withdrawal of the appeal would ensure that your client has the opportunity to complete the remaining requirements before the expiration of community custody.

If the State agrees to withdraw its current petition to revoke pursuant to this agreement, the State will expect Ms. Scott to continue making diligent efforts to complete the victim awareness class and obtain and comply with a mental health evaluation within a reasonable period of time. But, if she ceases to make reasonable and timely efforts at any point during the pendency of the community custody period, the State reserves the right to file a future petition to revoke. The State cited the initial appearance on the petition to revoke on the criminal docket beginning at 9:00 a.m. on August 16, 2016. At that hearing, if your client does not agree to the State's proposal, the State will ask the Court to set a contested hearing before the end of August 2016. Please contact me with any questions.

Sincerely.

Colin Hayes

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Page 1 of 4

1 08/16/2016 Case No. 11-1-01215-4 Motion to revoke GREGERSON

- 2 Baliff: Number one, Your Honor, on the criminal docket is Pamela Scott. Please come forward
- 3 Ms. Scott.
- 4 Prosecutor Hayes: Your Honor, we're here on first appearance on the State's petition to
- 5 revoke. I know Ms. Toth was the attorney last time on these proceedings, I would suggest that
- 6 the court re-appoint (???)
- 7 Judge Gregerson: Okay, Ms. Scott, do you understand what's going on here? The State is
- 8 apparently seeking to revoke your SOSSA disposition of your case.
- 9 Ms. Scott: Yes. And I also know that under SOSSA revocation I do not have a right to an
- 10 attorney, however, I do have a right to be heard. And I do have a right to show you these...
- 11 Judge Gregerson: Okay, well hold on. He's suggesting that the court re-appoint Ms. Toth on
- 12 your case.
- 13 Ms. Scott: I don't need her. I don't need her. He has threatened my appeal attorney.
- 14 Judge Gregerson: Hold on, hold on.
- 15 Ms. Scott: Judge Stahnke heard this on the 2nd and he wouldn't hear him. He has
- misrepresented every name, every person in here. I have zero violations, five years...
- 17 Judge Gregerson: Okay, ma'am, we're not getting into the substance of it. The question is,
- 18 right now, just what to do. I think we're going to set it for a hearing...
- 19 Ms. Scott: Okay, well then how do I stop him from harassing me?
- 20 Judge Gregerson: Well, you should probably have an attorney represent you because they have
- 21 the education, the skill, the experience and the training to be able to effectively speak for your
- 22 interests during this proceeding. Ms. Toth was representing you before, it's probably a good idea
- 23 to have her on board again.
- 24 Ms. Scott: I'm ready to go now, sir.
- 25 Judge Gregerson: Well, we're not having the hearing this morning. It's just to set a hearing for
- 26 this. Okay, do you want Ms. Toth appointed on your case?
- 27 Ms. Scott: If she must be. She's been...
- 28 Judge Gregerson: It's not that she must be, but I certainly recommend it.
- 29 Ms. Scott: That's fine.

Page 1 of 4

EXHIBIT 10

In a desperate effort to stop DPA Colin Hayes before he managed to get CCO Bethany Clemons to violate her into prison, in September 2016 Scott filed a tort claim form with the Office of Risk Management, alleging that DOC and the Clark County prosecutors' actions and omissions caused her to be wrongfully sentenced to an additional year of community custody. The Attorney General's Office (AGO) immediately notified DOC of Scott's claim.

An investigation was launched, which netted Petitioner a few of the above-referenced documents and 700 redacted pages of work product, some of which were accidentally released to Petitioner in many records requests. According to this evidence, DOC had developed a specific plan of action to deal with SSOSA sentences that had this "ambiguous" language error.



ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Torts Division
7141 Cleanwater Dr SW • PO Box 40126 • Olympia WA 98504-0126

September 26, 2016

Anmarie Aylward, Assistant Secretary Department of Corrections 7345 Linderson Way SW PO Box 41126 Olympia, WA 98504-1126

Monica Distefano, Executive Assistant Department of Corrections 7345 Linderson Way SW PO Box 41126 Olympia, WA 98504-1126

RE: New

New Tort Claim Claim of Scott, Pamela Kay DOC# 353595 ORM No. 31084243

Dear Ms. Aylward and Ms. Distefano:

The above-referenced tort claim has been filed against your agency and assigned to the Torts Division of the Attorney General's Office (AGO). This claim will be assigned to one of our investigators who will be contacting your agency shortly to begin an investigation, including gathering records relevant to the claim.

A copy of the tort claim has been enclosed for your information. In summary, the claimant (DOC# 353595), who is currently on community supervision for three counts of Possession of Depictions of a Minor Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct, alleges she was sentenced to an extra year of community custody because there was an error in the SSOSA J&S form being used by courts statewide. The claimant alleges DOC Correctional Records Technician, Louise Love, submitted a time-barred request to the Clark County Prosecutor's Office to have her sentence amended due to the state's error. The claimant alleges that based on the letter received, Deputy Prosecutor Colin Hayes filed an erroneous motion with the court to amend her sentence, adding an additional year of community supervision. The claimant alleges she appealed the time-barred amended sentence after the court denied her motion for reconsideration. The claimant alleges damages of emotional distress.

Once you have had an opportunity to review the claim, it would be helpful if you could provide the name or names of persons who could best provide assistance to our office and help coordinate contact with your agency.

Now that a tort claim has been filed, and a lawsuit based on the claim may follow, your agency is under an obligation to retain *all* records in its possession which could reasonably be considered relevant to the matter. Please refer to the attached "Tort Claim Hold Notice" for additional details.

As part of this process, please separately identify all communications between you and the AGO. These documents may be protected by the attorney-client privilege and should not be disclosed or distributed to anyone outside the agency or the AGO, or even to agency staff who are not

CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY/CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION - DO NOT DISCLOSE

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Department of Corrections September 26, 2016 Page 2

directly involved in this matter, without first consulting with me or the assigned investigator. Please prominently flag these documents as "Attorney-Client Privileged" and mark future communications directed to me or the assigned investigator as "Attorney-Client Privileged." Be careful not to share these communications with those who do not have a need to know so that the privilege is not waived. Following these procedures will help ensure that privileged communications are not inadvertently disclosed in response to a public records request.

Any individual, including the parties bringing this claim against the State, may submit a public disclosure request addressed directly to your agency under the Public Disclosure Act (RCW 42.56), seeking documents related to the claim. Please inform our office right away if this happens, because we may not otherwise be notified about the request. We need to ensure that the request is answered fully and consistently—failure to do so could significantly compromise our defense of the claim.

Once assigned, the preliminary investigation of the claim takes approximately 60-80 days. If a lawsuit is filed prior to the completion of our preliminary investigation, the assigned assistant attorney general will be in contact with you.

If you have any questions regarding the progress of the investigation, or the attached *Tort Claim Hold Notice*, please feel free to contact me at any time.

Sincerely,

LEIGH I SWANSON Chief Torts Investigator

(360)586-6400

Enclosures

cc:

Allan Soper, via email (w/encl)
Debbie Kendall, via email (w/encl)
Dianne Ashlock, via email (w/encl)
Kathy Gastreich, via email (w/encl)
Denise Vaughan, via email (w/encl)
Erica Green, via email (w/encl)

Tim Lang, via email (w/encl)

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

The Court of Appeals Decision No. 83419-3-I/2, filed 3/14/2022, is not based on the evidence in the trial record or admissible evidence in the petitioner's appeal brief, which provide genuine issues of material fact sufficient to survive a motion to dismiss, according to US Supreme Court precedent, "To survive a motion to dismiss, a complaint must contain sufficient factual matter, accepted as true, to 'state a claim to relief that is plausible on its face." *Ashcroft v. Iqbal*, 556 U.S. 662, 129 S. Ct. 1937, 173 L. Ed. 2d 868 (2009). Judge Evans dismissed all respondents, with prejudice, without any reference to the evidence contained in Petitioner's complaint. He dismissed Petitioner's Joinder with an argument on judicial immunity that Scott did not make.

When presented with this same evidence, the Court of Appeal seems to have adopted the respondents' unsupported arguments without looking at the evidence available in the record.

For instance, in relation to the DOC defendants, the Court of Appeals ruled, in part:

Love, however, did not petition the court to review Scott's sentence under RCW 9.94A.585(7). Although Love apparently believed that the faulty language in the form judgment and sentence fell within the definition of a clerical error, the act of notifying the prosecutors of the apparent error in Scott's judgment and sentence was not wrongful. Neither Love nor any other DOC defendant filed the CrR 7.8 motion to amend Scott's judgment and sentence, or granted that motion. The DOC defendants did not cause Scott to serve additional time on community custody.

The Court of Appeals must know that sending an email to the prosecutor is the first step of reviewing a sentence under RCW 9.94A.585(7). The documents and evidence in Petitioner's complaint and presented here show clearly that it was never DOC's intent to disturb sentences older than 90 days, because there is no authority for that. DOC was changing their internal computer records to match the flawed Judgment and Sentences. Louise Love had only two tools

to deal with the stack of problematic SSOSA sentences on her desk; follow the express instructions in the DOC SSOSA Supervision Length Review Process; or follow the express instructions of RCW 9.94A.585(7). When Louise Love failed to do either, and when DOC as an agency refused to take action to correct Love's error, they robbed Scott of the due processes and protections contained in both RCW 9.94A.585(7), and in the SSOSA Supervision Length Review.

"Line 1. Review J&S to see if it includes the following boilerplate language or if the Court has subtracted the confinement time from the supervision length."

"Line 3. If they have the boilerplate language or the Court orders a supervision length that reduces the suspended sentence length, subtract the original confinement time length from the suspended sentence length and this will become the new suspended sentence. Example: Court orders a suspended sentence of 131 months, in addition they order 6 months of original confinement. Subtract the 6 months of original confinement from the suspended sentence length and enter 125 months as the supervision length and the suspended confinement length will remain 131 months."

Because Scott's file contained BOTH the boilerplate language AND the Court ordered supervision length that reduced the suspended sentence length, Ms. Love was clearly instructed to change Scott's sentence in her file and then take the following steps:

"Line 4. Chrono the changes and the new SED."

"Line 5. Email the CCO of the SED change."

"Line 6. Send an email to the Prosecutor and the Defense attorney using our normal Problem J&S process. Template has been added to our Problem J&S Process."

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