FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON als 6/24/2022 BY ERIN L. LENNON gton CLERK AM

NO. 83419-3

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

PAMELA K. SCOTT,

Petitioner,

v.

LOUISE LOVE, ET. AL.,

Respondents.

RESPONDENT CLARK COUNTY'S RESPONSE TO APPELLANTS' PETITION FOR REVIEW TO THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

Attorneys for Respondent Clark County:

ANTHONY F. GOLIK Prosecuting Attorney Clark County, Washington

AMANDA MIGCHELBRINK, WSBA #34223 Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Clark County Prosecuting Attorney Civil Division 1300 Franklin Street PO Box 5000 Vancouver WA 98666-5000 Telephone (360) 397-2478

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

ARGUMENT

I. The Court of Appeals Decision is consistent with many Courts' repeated holdings that absolute prosecutorial immunity applies to cases where a prosecutor does not personally attest to the veracity of facts presented in a document.

The United States Supreme Court and Washington State

Courts have long held that prosecuting attorneys acting in their

prosecutorial role are entitled to absolute immunity from civil

liability. Anderson v. Manley, 181 Wash. 327, 331, 43 P.2d 39

(1935); Musso-Escude v. Edwards, 101 Wn. App. 560, 570, 4

P.3d 151 (2000); McCarthy v. Cty. Of Clark, 193 Wn. App. 314,

337, 376 P.3d 1127, 1138 (2016); and Imbler v. Pachtman, 424

US. 409, 431, 96 S. Ct. 984, 47 L. Ed. 2d 128 (1976) ("[I]n

initiating prosecution and in presenting the State's case, the

prosecutor is immune from a civil suit for damages under §

1983."). In 2016, the Washington Court of Appeals reiterated

this longstanding doctrine:

"[P]rosecutors generally have absolute immunity for initiating and pursuing a criminal prosecution. Absolute immunity means that a prosecutor is shielded from liability even when he or she engages in willful misconduct. This immunity is warranted to protect the prosecutor's role as an advocate because any lesser immunity could impair the judicial process."

McCarthy at 337 (internal citations omitted).

The justification for this absolute rule "is founded upon a sound public policy, not for the protection of the [prosecutorial] officers, but for the protection of the public and to insure active and independent action of the officers charged with the prosecution of crime, for the protection of life and property." *Anderson*, 181 Wash. at 331. And in Washington, the government entity that employs the prosecuting attorney shares the same immunity as the individual. *Creelman*, 67 Wn.2d at 885.² Thus, to the extent a prosecutor would be individually immune, the County and the Clark County Prosecuting Attorney's Office are as well. *Id*.

In this case, as in *Anderson, Musso–Escude, Imbler* and *McCarthy*, Appellant alleges that the Clark County Prosecuting Attorneys are civilly liable for the prosecutorial actions that they took in pursuing her criminal prosecution. Specifically,

Appellant's alleges that her claims and damages arise from DPA Collin Hayes' filing of a CrR 7.8 motion on behalf of the State of Washington to correct a perceived error in Appellant's sentence. Opening Brief at 26. This motion was contested by her criminal defense attorney, argued, and ultimately granted by a Clark County Superior Court Judge before being appealed by Appellant - all pursuant to the due process afforded by the rules of criminal and appellate procedure. The filing of pleadings and motions on behalf of the state in a criminal proceeding is the core and fundamental function of a prosecuting attorney. The

² At the time *Creelman* was decided, the question of whether a prosecuting attorney was an employee of the county or state was unanswered. 67 Wn.2d. at 883. The Washington Court of Appeals has since determined that the prosecutor acts on behalf of the state in such situations. *Whatcom County v. State*, 99 Wn. App. 237, 242, 99311.2d 273 (2000).

fundamental prosecutorial nature of this action and the resulting entitlement prosecutorial immunity does not depend upon whether CrR 7.8 was the correct procedural mechanism to correct the perceived sentencing error or whether this issue was ultimately conceded by the state on appeal. Because the filing of a CrR 7.8 motion with the court is a fundamental prosecutorial function, the Clark County Prosecuting Attorneys are entitled absolute prosecutorial immunity.

DPA Hayes' subsequent filing of a motion to revoke Appellant's SSOSA status are likewise core prosecutorial functions for which he is entitled to absolute prosecutorial immunity. Moreover, that action has no bearing on Appellant's claims because the motion to revoke SSOSA status was withdrawn. Finally, as the federal court observed, these prosecutorial actions do not demonstrate malice.

Because all of Petitioner's claims against the Clark County Prosecuting Attorney's Office and the individual attorney arose from the performance of official prosecutorial duties and are thus barred by the doctrine of absolute prosecutorial immunity, the Court of Appeals properly ruled

that Petitioner's claims were properly dismissed as a matter of law pursuant to CR 12(b).

II. The Court of Appeals Decision is not in conflict with *Kalina* or any decision of the Court of Appeals.

Petitioner does not appear to contend that a conflict exists with the Supreme Court decision in *Kalina*, but instead argues that the Court of Appeals did not properly apply the holding of the case to the circumstances presented in this case. Should this Court consider Petitioner's argument to be that the decision conflicts with *Kalina*, she has failed to show any such conflict warranting this Court'

The Court of Appeals' well-reasoned refusal to extend the holding of *Kalina* to the circumstances presented in Petitioner's complaint is not equivalent to creating a conflict with existing case law. As the Court of Appeals noted in its decision, Petitioner believes *Kalina* applies in this case because Hayes filed a sworn motion to revoke her SSOSA. The Court of Appeals properly held that DPA Hayes's actions of filing a sworn motion is not the same as personally vouching for the truth of matters stated in any affidavit or motion, which would make Hayes more of a complaining witness. Rather, Hayes signed the motion as the attorney of record. The Court acted pursuant to existing case law in applying absolute prosecutorial immunity and dismissing DPA from petitioner's lawsuit.

III. This case does not present an issue of substantial public importance or precedential value because the case law is well settled in favor of dismissal.

Petitioner does not present any argument that there is substantial public importance or precedential value necessitating this Court's review. The Court of Appeals decision properly considered the existing case law, as stated above, and did not deviate or render a decision contrary to that case law. The court's decision does not have the potential of affecting parties beyond this proceeding. The petitioner certainly has not presented any argument to the contrary. Absent any showing that the Court of Appeals ruling presents an issue of substantial public importance or precedential value in its decision to uphold the dismissal of DPA Hayes, this Court should not grant the petition for review.

CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals correctly applied this Court's well-

developed body of law regarding absolute qualified immunity.

For the reasons set forth above, this Court should deny the

petition for review.